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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The East Capitol Street Car Barn is a picturesquely massed, red brick struc-
ture which occupies almost the entire block in northeast Washington bounded
on the south by East Capitol Street, on the west by l4th Street, on the
north by A Street, and on the east by 15th Street, This utilitarian build-
ing with Romanesque Revival detailing was constructed in 1896. It has two
main sections: 1) the narrow office block at the south which is approxi-
mately 433" long and 46' widegjand 2) the car house consisting of three sheds
attached to the north side of the office section. Each shed is approximately
80' wide, and two of them extend the entire 433'. length of the building. The
north shed is approximately 250' long and begins at the west wall of the
building. Due to this shed's shorter length, the building has an L-shaped
plan and the northeast corner is occupied by an open yard, 80' by 184',

Structually the building is not innovative. Its brick bearing walls have a
brick and concrete foundation. The office block has a basement, wood floors,
and wood framing supporting roofs covered with slate on wood sheathing.

Brick walls and cast iron columns carry the heavy wood trusses and steel
beams of the monitor roofs of the sheds. The sheds' roofs are covered with
corrugated iron sheathing. The sheds are separated by 4" hollow tile walls
which ended before the transfer table which was located at the west end of
the entire car house, Most of the floors of the sheds were covered with
granite block paving.

The office section has a Beaux-Arts plan consisting of a central pavilion
connected to end pavilions by long hyphens., The two story end pavilions
have high hip roofs and two story, projecting, square corner towers with
pyramidal roofs. On the south (main) facade of each end pavilion a semi-
elliptical arch joins the corner towers at the second floor level and
supports a balcony. The balcony is under the pavilion's overhanging eaves.
The one story, gable roofed hyphens each have seven recessed panels separa-
ted by pilasters. Each panel has two windows with semi-elliptical arches.
Next to the central pavilion each hyphen has one window which is not in a
recessed panel., Near the west pavilion a dormer is located on the south
slope of the roof of the west hyphen. It is probable that this dormer is a
later addition as it is the only major assymmetrical feature of the south
facade. The main pavilion is a two-story, rectangular block covered with a
gabled mansard roof which is broken by several chimmeys. At its south
corners are two-story, square towers with pyramidal roofs., Semi-elliptical
arches and balconies similar to those of the end pavilions join the corner
towers of the central pavilion with its large, three-story central tower
with high hip roof. The first story of this central tower has a large
round-arched entrance flanked by rectangular windows with transoms. On the
second and third stories of the central tower are two groupings of three
windows. The second story windows are rectangular and the third story win-
dows have round arches.,
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Joint Committee on Landmarks has designated the East Capitol Street Car
Barn, at 1400 East Capitol Street, N.,E,, a Category II Landmark of impor-
tance which contributes significantly to the cultural heritage and visual
beauty of the District of Columbia, This large, well preserved, picturesque
building designed by Waddy B. Wood is intrinsicallylinked to the history

of Washington's rapid transit system. The building, erected as a car barn,
repair shop, and administrative offices for the Metropolitan Railroad
Company in 1896 is an architecturally imposing structure representing three
important stages in the history of the rapid transit system: (1) the
electrification of Washington streetcars and the final replacement of horse-
drawn cars in the 1890'ss (2) the consolidation of streetcar lines into a
functional network in the early 20th century; and (3) the gradual replace-
ment of the streetcar by the bus in the first half of the 20th century.

History

Washington in the late 19th century had a proliferation of street railway
lines. 1Its first streetcar company, the Washington and Georgetown Railroad
Company, was chartered in May 1862. The second company, the Metropolitan
Railroad Company,was chartered in July 1864, and over thirty years later
this company built the East Capitol Street Car Barn. The Metropolitan was
founded by A.R. Shepherd and Richard Wallack to operate on F Street and 9th
Street, At first it was not an economic success and used one horse 'bob-
tail" cars to cut expenses., By the 1870's the company was showing a profit
and began to expand. Following a common trend among Washington streetcar
companies in the late 19th century, the Metropolitan absorbed other com-
panies and so acquired new lines, In 1872 it absorbed the Union Railroad
Company and the Boundary and Silver Springs Railway Company. In 1874 it
acquired the Connecticut Avenue and Park Railway Company.

In 1889 and 1890 the United States Congress required streetcar companies in
downtown Washington to convert from animal traction to some form of
mechanical traction. The use of overhead wires was also outlawed., In order
to comply with these requirements the streetcar companies experimented with
various mechanization schemes. The Metropolitan unsuccessfully tested a
storage battery system from 1889 to 1894. 1In 1894 the company was required
by congress to construct an underground conduit system., Such a system
allowed electric cars to be operated without wires due to the conduit
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Boettjer, John W. '"Street Railways in the District of Columbia.," (M.A.
Thesis , George Washington University, January 1963)
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Hand-select red brick and moulded brick are used in the office block. The
office section of the car barn has handsome decorative brickwork. Corbeling

on the towers support panels of diaperwork,
has channeling to simulate stonework, The

The first story of the towers
second story of the corner towers
The

of the central paviliom has

squares with geometric designs in brick.,

cornices of the hyphens are brick,

The cornices of the towers are probably

sheet metal. Other features include tooled granite sills, lintels, belt
course, steps, water table, keystones and chimney caps.

The sheds are common brick and have little applied ornamentation.
have semi-elliptical arches and granite sills, There is a granite water table
and brick cornice, The monitor roofs of the sheds are expressed in the
basilica end form of their side elevations. The taller, central section of
each shed contains the rectangular entrance. Above the entrance are three
windows under an oculus, Flanking the entrance are two windows, Pilasters
separate the facade into clear geometric divisions. Since the basilica end

is repeated three times on the west facade, a distinct rhythm is established.

Windows

Street car tracks still run through the car sheds, Originally the two far
tracks on either side of the car house formed a loop, Other tracks were over
pits for maintaining the machinery under the cars. At the west was a trans-
fer table used to move the cars from one track to another. At the east of the
shorter north shed was the stable where the repair wagon and its horses were
kept.

The exterior of the car barn is remarkably unchanged except that the windows
are presently boarded up. The office section has undergone some interior
change, The large open spaces of the sheds have been preserved.

8. Significance

which ran between the rails in the center of the track. Congress also ex-
tended the company's line on East Capitol Street around the sides of Lincoln
Park to 15th Street, or to the site of their future car barn.

Metropolitan hired A, N, Connett as chief engineer and installed an electric
conduit line on 9th Street. This line opened on July 29, 1895, and was a
success, Metropolitan quickly converted its other lines to the conduit system,
and other street car companies followed suit. By 1899 all downtown lines were
operated by electric conduit.

The East Capitol Street Car Barn was built when Metropolitan was converting all
of its lines to the conduit system, Its building permit is dated March 18,
1896. Built in an undeveloped section of the city, the car barn occupied all

f square 1057 except the northeast corner. The building was designed by
addy B. Wood, a prominent Washington architect, and A, N, Connett was its
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engineer, The building,containing administrative offices of the Metropolitan
Railroad Company as well as a storage room and repair facilities for cars,was
occupied in 1897,

In 1899 an attempt was made to organize Washington's numerous streetcar com=
panies when Washington Traction and Electric Company, a consolidation of ten

car lines and two electric power companies, was formed. Metropolitan was one
of the two profitable streetcar companies taking part in the consolidation,

In June 1901, the Washington Traction and Electric Company was declared bank-
rupt.

In February 1902, the property of the Washington Traction and Electric Company
was taken over by the Washington Railway and Electric Company. This company
stabilized the streetcar situation and for the first time Washington had an
efficient network of electric railways instead of many competing lines., The
offices of the company were in the East Capitol Street Car Barn until 1918
when they moved to l4th and G Streets, N,W. The car barn continued to function
as a storage and repair shop for electric cars after the offices moved.

In 1933 the Washington Railway and Electric Company combined with Capital
Traction Company, The merged company, Capital Transit Company, operated both
streetcars and buses, Gradually the streetcars were replaced by the more
flexible buses, In 1956 D.C, Transit received Capital Transit Company's
franchise., On January 28, 1962, the last streetcar - was operated in Washingtoni
The East Capitol Street Car Barn was used to store buses,

In 1973 D.C, Transit Company was acquired by METRO, Washington's new rapid
transit authority, East Capitol Street Car Barn, however, was not acquired
by METRO, and it is presently vacant. There is considerable interest in
adapting it for use as a recreational facility.
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